REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP5-43356-H01), ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN FOR NASA SAFETY CULTURE AND CLIMATE

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

DATED:  DECEMBER 29, 2003

1.  Would you consider extending the due date?  

Amendment 1, issued on December 29, 2003, is extending the due date for proposals to January 14, 2003.  

2.  Is this procurement being conducted as a full and open competition or a small business set-aside?

The procurement is being conducted as a full and open competition.

3.  Is this a NASA HQ effort or a Goddard Space Flight Center requirement?

This effort encompasses all of NASA.  See Question #4.  The requirements organization for this procurement is the Office of Human Resources at NASA Headquarters.

4.  Which NASA locations will be included in this project?  Are some locations a higher priority than others?  How many employees are included at each location?  Are major contractors/subcontractors to be included?

As stated in the solicitation under PLACE OF PERFORMANCE--SERVICES (GSFC 52.237 92) (OCT 1988), the services specified by this contact shall be performed at the following location(s):  contractor’s facilities, NASA HQ, all NASA field centers, and Jet Propulsion Laboratory.  There are no pre-designated priority locations since the agency is seeking to transform the culture of the entire organization.  However, as the culture transformation effort unfolds, data may be gathered that indicates that the scope of activities may require some location-specific tailoring.  It is anticipated that the selected awardee will use professional judgment to identify and propose any such tailoring that may better achieve the desired overall outcome.

Consistent with the One NASA effort and the CAIB report findings, the transformation of NASA's safety culture includes civil servants as well as on-site and near-site contractors, including JPL.  NASA currently employs approximately 19,000 civil servants and 45,000 contractor employees.  NASA recognizes that employees of contractors are not employees of NASA and that certain differentiations must be made between contractors and civil servants.  However, the nature of the working relationship of on-site/near-site contractors to civil servants makes necessary their inclusion, in appropriate ways, in plans that intend to make lasting changes in the safety culture and climate. Information about NASA's workforce can be found via the following pages:  http://nasapeople.nasa.gov/
Click on NASA Workforce Profile

http://nasapeople.nasa.gov/workforce/default.htm
Click on NASA Workforce Map

http://nasapeople.nasa.gov/workforce/data/page7.htm
5.  Are the cover page of the proposal (i.e. Standard Form (SF) 1449) and the representations and certifications included in the current page limitations?  Also, the solicitation specifies a font size of 12 point or larger; however the representations and certifications that you have provided in a web link have a font size smaller than 12 point.

Amendment 1 clarifies this issue to exclude these items from the page limitations and the font requirements.

6.  The RFP states “an additional 5-page limitation for the Representative Task discussion.”  Does this apply on to the technical approach discussion, or does this apply to both the technical approach discussion and price for the Representative Task combined?

Amendment 1 clarifies this issue.  The 5-page limitation for the Representative Task discussion includes both the technical approach discussion and pricing information.  Also, the Specific Proposal Instructions have been modified to create a separate Representative Task section that is tied to the 5-page limit for that discussion.

7.  Does this contract automatically preclude bidding on another “class” of work to support NASA?

No.  The selected awardee will not be precluded from participating in future NASA requirements.

8.  Will a GSA/MOBIS schedule be considered looked upon favorably as a cost mechanism?

As stated above in question 2, this procurement is being conducted as a full and open competition, not a Federal Supply Schedule acquisition.  Offerors are required to comply with the pricing instructions set forth in the RFP.

9.  What does a DPAS rating of DO-C9 mean?  

This rating implements the Defense Priorities and Allocations System (DPAS), a Department of Commerce (DOC) regulation in support of authorized national defense programs (see 15 CFR 700).  DO-C9 stands for “Other/Misc.” 

10.  Will clearances be required or considered an asset?

Clearances are not required and will not be evaluated.

11.  Regarding the proposal, the Statement of Work states that offerors are expected to "develop a plan achieving measurable results ...."  Will the same offeror(s) be involved in the implementation? Or will implementation be part of another bid?

The scope of activities that may be ordered under the resultant Indefinite-Delivery, Indefinite-Quantity (IDIQ) contract(s) includes both the planning and implementation of the transformation of the Agency’s organizational and safety culture.

12.  May we submit our offer as a Microsoft Powerpoint document?

No.  The general proposal instructions specify Microsoft Word and Microsoft excel products.  

13.  Does an educational institution qualify for award of this contract?

Yes.  As stated in answer number 2, the procurement is being conducted as a full and open competition. 
14.  Will the “highest” senior executives in NASA be substantially available for participating and championing this “culture turnaround” project?

Yes.  All levels of the NASA workforce will be substantially involved in this project.
15.  Can you direct me to the website where we might review the changes identified by the Columbia Accident Investigation Board?

As previously stated in the synopsis and solicitation, this information can be found at the following: http://www.caib.us/
16.  Does NASA have a bidder’s list in place for this procurement?

No.

17.  Are you requiring “hardcopy” or will you be accepting electronic copy via email with proposal attached?

This information can be found in the general proposal instructions of the solicitation.  

